
 

 

 

 
Meeting: Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC)      

Date: Wednesday, January 11, 2017 

Time: 5 to 7 p.m.  

Place: Metro Regional Center, Council Chamber 

 

5:00 PM 1. 
 
 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER, INTRODUCTIONS, CHAIR 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

Mark Gamba, Chair 

5:10 PM 2.  CITIZEN COMMUNICATIONS  

5:15 PM 3.  COUNCIL UPDATE Metro Council 

5:20 PM 4.  
 

MPAC MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS  

5:25 PM 5.   
* 

 * 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 MTAC Nomination 

 Consideration of November 9, 2016 Minutes 

 

 

 6.  INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS  

5: 30 PM 
 
5:40 PM 
 
6:30 PM 
 
 

6.1 
 
6.2 
 
6.3 

* 
 
 
 
* 
 
 

MPAC’s Legal Roles and Responsibilities  
 
MPAC’s Role in 2017 
 
2017 Metro Legislative Agenda Update 

Alison Kean, Metro Attorney 
 
Mark Gamba, Chair  
 
Andy Shaw, Metro 

7:00 PM 8.  ADJOURN  
     

* Material included in the packet 

# Material will be provided at the meeting 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

For agenda and schedule information, please contact Nellie Papsdorf:  
 503-797-1916 or Nellie.Papsdorf@oregonmetro.gov.  

Upcoming MPAC Meetings:  

 Wednesday, January 25, 2017 

 Wednesday, February 8, 2017 

 Wednesday, February 22, 2017 

 

 
  
Joint MPAC/JPACT Meeting on Climate Smart Communities Project on April 11

th 

Meeting World Forestry Center, Cheatham Hall 8:00 a.m. to 
noon  
 

 
  
Joint MPAC/JPACT Meeting on Climate Smart Communities Project on April 11

th 

Meeting World Forestry Center, Cheatham Hall 8:00 a.m. to 
noon  

 
  
Joint MPAC/JPACT Meeting on Climate Smart Communities Project on April 11

th 

Meeting World Forestry Center, Cheatham Hall 8:00 a.m. to 
noon  

mailto:Nellie.Papsdorf@oregonmetro.gov


 

   November 2014 

Metro respects civil rights 

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes that ban discrimination.  If any person believes they have been discriminated against 
regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information 
on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination complaint form, visit www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536. Metro provides services or 
accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication 
aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1890 or TDD/TTY 503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair 
accessible. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet’s website at www.trimet.org. 
 

Thông báo về sự Metro không kỳ thị của  
Metro tôn trọng dân quyền. Muốn biết thêm thông tin về chương trình dân quyền 
của Metro, hoặc muốn lấy đơn khiếu nại về sự kỳ thị, xin xem trong 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Nếu quý vị cần thông dịch viên ra dấu bằng tay, 
trợ giúp về tiếp xúc hay ngôn ngữ, xin gọi số 503-797-1890 (từ 8 giờ sáng đến 5 giờ 
chiều vào những ngày thường) trước buổi họp 5 ngày làm việc. 

Повідомлення Metro про заборону дискримінації  
Metro з повагою ставиться до громадянських прав. Для отримання інформації 
про програму Metro із захисту громадянських прав або форми скарги про 
дискримінацію відвідайте сайт www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. або Якщо вам 
потрібен перекладач на зборах, для задоволення вашого запиту зателефонуйте 
за номером 503-797-1890 з 8.00 до 17.00 у робочі дні за п'ять робочих днів до 
зборів. 

Metro 的不歧視公告 
尊重民權。欲瞭解Metro民權計畫的詳情，或獲取歧視投訴表，請瀏覽網站 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights。如果您需要口譯方可參加公共會議，請在會

議召開前5個營業日撥打503-797-
1890（工作日上午8點至下午5點），以便我們滿足您的要求。 

Ogeysiiska takooris la’aanta ee Metro 
Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquuqda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku 
saabsan barnaamijka xuquuqda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid warqadda ka 
cabashada takoorista, booqo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan 
tahay turjubaan si aad uga  qaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1890 (8 
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shaqada) shan maalmo shaqo ka hor 
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada. 

 Metro의 차별 금지 관련 통지서   
Metro의 시민권 프로그램에 대한 정보 또는 차별 항의서 양식을 얻으려면, 또는 
차별에 대한 불만을 신고 할 수www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. 당신의 언어 
지원이 필요한 경우, 회의에 앞서 5 영업일 (오후 5시 주중에 오전 8시) 503-797-
1890를 호출합니다.  

Metroの差別禁止通知 
Metroでは公民権を尊重しています。Metroの公民権プログラムに関する情報

について、または差別苦情フォームを入手するには、www.oregonmetro.gov/ 
civilrights。までお電話ください公開会議で言語通訳を必要とされる方は、 
Metroがご要請に対応できるよう、公開会議の5営業日前までに503-797-
1890（平日午前8時～午後5時）までお電話ください。 

េសចកត ីជូនដំណឹងអំពីការមិនេរសីេអើងរបស់ Metro 
ការេគារពសិទិធពលរដឋរបស់ ។ សំរាប់ព័ត៌មានអំពីកមម វធិីសិទិធពលរដឋរបស់ Metro 

ឬេដើមបីទទួលពាកយបណត ឹងេរសីេអើងសូមចូលទសសនាេគហទំព័រ 
 ។www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights

េបើេលាកអនករតវូការអនកបកែរបភាសាេនៅេពលអងគ 
របជំុសាធារណៈ សូមទូរស័ពទមកេលខ 503-797-1890 (េម៉ាង 8 រពឹកដល់េម៉ាង 5 លាង ច 

ៃថងេធវ ើការ) របាំពីរៃថង 
ៃថងេធវ ើការ មុនៃថងរបជុំេដើមបីអាចឲយេគសរមួលតាមសំេណើរបស់េលាកអនក ។ 

 
 

 

 

 Metroإشعار بعدم التمييز من 

للحقوق المدنية أو لإيداع شكوى  Metroللمزيد من المعلومات حول برنامج . الحقوق المدنية Metroتحترم 
إن كنت بحاجة . www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrightsضد التمييز، يُرجى زيارة الموقع الإلكتروني 

صباحاً حتى  8من الساعة (  1890-797-503إلى مساعدة في اللغة، يجب عليك الاتصال مقدماً برقم الھاتف
 .أيام عمل من موعد الاجتماع) 5(قبل خمسة ) مساءاً، أيام الاثنين إلى الجمعة 5الساعة 

 

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon   
Iginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa 
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng 
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights.  Kung 
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa 
503-797-1890 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng 
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan.Notificación de 
no discriminación de Metro. 
 
Notificación de no discriminación de Metro  
Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener información sobre el programa de 
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por 
discriminación, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia 
con el idioma, llame al 503-797-1890 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los días de semana) 
5 días laborales antes de la asamblea. 

Уведомление о недопущении дискриминации от Metro  
Metro уважает гражданские права. Узнать о программе Metro по соблюдению 
гражданских прав и получить форму жалобы о дискриминации можно на веб-
сайте www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Если вам нужен переводчик на 
общественном собрании, оставьте свой запрос, позвонив по номеру 503-797-
1890 в рабочие дни с 8:00 до 17:00 и за пять рабочих дней до даты собрания. 

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea  
Metro respectă drepturile civile. Pentru informații cu privire la programul Metro 
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obține un formular de reclamație împotriva 
discriminării, vizitați www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Dacă aveți nevoie de un 
interpret de limbă la o ședință publică, sunați la 503-797-1890 (între orele 8 și 5, în 
timpul zilelor lucrătoare) cu cinci zile lucrătoare înainte de ședință, pentru a putea să 
vă răspunde în mod favorabil la cerere. 

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom  
Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus qhia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib 
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights.  Yog hais tias 
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1890 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus 
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham.     

 



 

 

2017 MPAC Work Program 
As of 01/05/17 

 
Items in italics are tentative; bold denotes required items 

Wednesday, January 11, 2017 

 MPAC Roles and Responsibilities (Alison Kean, 
Metro; 10 min) 

 MPAC’s Role in 2017 (Mark Gamba, Chair; 50 
min) 

 2017 Metro Legislative Agenda (Andy Shaw, 
Metro; 15 min) 

Wednesday, January 25, 2017 

 2018 RTP: Project Update and Report Back on 
Regional Leadership Forum #3 – 
Information/Discussion (Kim Ellis, Metro; 15 min) 

Wednesday, February 8, 2017 

 Powell-Division Transit Locally-Preferred 
Alternative (LPA) and RTP Amendment – 
Information/Discussion (TBD, Metro; 40 min)  

Wednesday, February 22, 2017 

 2018 RTP Update: Building the RTP Investment 
Strategy – Information/Discussion (Ellis, Metro; 
45 min) 

 2018 RTP Update: Vision Zero and Safety Crash 
Data Analysis – Information/Discussion (Lake 
McTighe, Metro; 30 min) 

 

Wednesday, March 8, 2017 

 Urban Growth Management: Summary of 
Proposed Work Program – 
Information/Discussion (Ted Reid, Metro; 45 
min) 

 

Wednesday, March 22, 2017 

 2018 RTP: Regional Transit Vision – 
Information/Discussion (Jamie Snook, Metro; 
TBD) 

 2018 RTP: Regional Freight Plan Update – 
Information/Discussion (Tim Collins, Metro; TBD) 

 

Wednesday, April 12, 2017 

 2018 RTP Update: Building the RTP Investment 
Strategy – Recommendation (Ellis, Metro; 60 
min) 

 

Wednesday, April 26, 2017 

Wednesday, May 10, 2017 

 Powell-Division Transit LPA and RTP 
Amendment – Recommendation (TBD, Metro; 
40 min) 

Wednesday, May 24, 2017 



 

 

Wednesday, June 14, 2017 Wednesday, June 28, 2017 

Wednesday, July 12, 2017 Wednesday, July 26, 2017 

 2018 RTP: Digital Mobility (Ellis, Metro; TBD) 
 2018 RTP: Resilience (Ellis, Metro; TBD) 

 
Upcoming events: 

 December 2017: RTP Regional Leadership Forum #4 (Drafting Our Shared Plan for the 
Region) 

 June 2018: RTP Regional Leadership Forum #5 (Finalizing Our Shared Plan for the Region) 

 
Parking Lot:  

 Presentation on health & land use featuring local projects from around the region 
 Greater Portland, Inc. update 
 “Unsettling Profiles” presentation by Coalition of Communities of Color  
 Washington County Transportation Futures Study in January or February 2017 
 Missing middle housing walking tour with Eli Spevak  
 System development charges (SDCs)  
 City of Portland inclusionary housing 
 November 2017: 2018 RTP, Analysis Findings and Background on Regional Leadership 

Forum #4 
 



Memo 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

November 28, 2016 

MPAC 

John Williams, MTAC Chair 

Metro 
600 NE Grand Ave. 
Portland, OR 97232-2736 

We have received a nomination for the Second Largest City in Washington County: 
Beaverton MTAC position. 

The City of Beaverton has nominated Anna Slatinsky to be their new alternate. Todd Juhasz 
remains the primary member. 

Please consider this nomination for MTAC membership. Per MPAC's bylaws, MPAC may 
approve or reject any nomination submitted. 

If you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Thank you. 



   

 

 

  
METRO POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MPAC) 

Meeting Minutes 
November 09, 2016 

Metro Regional Center, Council Chamber 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT AFFILIATION 
Tim Clark 
Carlotta Collette 
Mark Gamba 
Jeff Gudman 
John Hayes 
Jerry Hinton 
Gordon Hovies 
Dick Jones 
Craig Prosser 
Loretta Smith 
Peter Truax 
Jerry Willey 

City of Wood Village, Other Cities in Multnomah Co. 
Metro Council 
City of Milwaukie, Other Cities in Clackamas Co. 
City of Lake Oswego, Largest City in Clackamas Co. 
Forest Grove School District, Governing Body of a School District 
City of Gresham, 2nd Largest City in Multnomah Co. 
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue, Special Districts in Washington Co. 
Oak Lodge Water District, Special Districts in Clackamas Co. 
TriMet 
Multnomah County 
City of Forest Grove, Other Cities in Washington Co. 
City of Hillsboro, Largest City in Washington Co. 
 

ALTERNATES PRESENT AFFILIATION 
Kathryn Harrington 
Marc San Soucie 
John Griffiths 
Emerald Bogue 

Metro Council 
City of Beaverton, 2nd Largest City in Washington Co. 
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue, Special Districts in Washington Co. 
Port of Portland 
 

MEMBERS EXCUSED AFFLIATION 
Sam Chase 
Bob Stacey 
 

Metro Council 
Metro Council 

 
OTHERS PRESENT: Adam Barber, Chris Deffebach 
 
STAFF:  Christopher Spencer, Roger Alfred, Ernest Hayes, Shaina Hobbs, Nellie Papsdorf, Elissa 
Gertler, Jamie Snook, Kim Ellis 

1. CALL TO ORDER, SELF INTRODUCTIONS, CHAIR COMMUNICATIONS 

MPAC Chair Tim Clark called the meeting to order at 5:06p.m. All attendees introduced themselves.  
 
Mr. Craig Prosser gave an extended self introduction. 

2. CITIZEN COMMUNICATIONS 



 

 
11/09/16 MPAC Minutes   2  

There were none. 

3. COUNCIL UPDATE 

 Councilor Carlotta Collette noted recent events with the Powell-Division Steering 
Committee and the agreement to a locally-preferred alternative. She added that the 
agreement would also need to be approved by Metro, TriMet, and Gresham City Council. She 
stated that Metro was committed to the corridor with Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) and 
associated projects.  

 Councilor Collette mentioned the recent voter passage of Metro’s levy renewal ballot in all 
three counties. She mentioned that the annual report of levy work was available at the 
meeting. 

 Councilor Collette shared that the Urban Growth Readiness Task Force met to discuss 
methods to allow flexibility in Metro’s role in urban growth management. She continued to 
mention that changes in urban growth laws would need to be reviewed with the 
Metropolitan Transportation Alternatives Committee (MTAC) in order to ensure that the 
code language was consistent with Metro’s six desired outcomes for the region. 

 Councilor Collette noted the Willamette Falls Legacy Project and the potential design 
concepts. She added that there would be an upcoming open house with a presentation by 
Design Collective on the riverwalk design. 

 Councilor Collette mentioned that it was MPAC Chair Tim Clark’s last meeting. She gave 
recognition for his leadership in working with the MPAC committee members. 

4. MPAC MEMBER COMMUNICATION 

Councilor Marc San Soucie mentioned updates on the recent voter turnout and that it was a close 
race. Mr. Craig Prosser highlighted receiving ballots from active military members stationed out of 
country. Chair Clark stated that this spoke to the importance of the recent election. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 Consideration of October 12, 2016 MPAC Minutes 

 MTAC Nominations 

MOTION: Mayor Peter Truax moved, and Councilor Marc San Soucie seconded, to adopt the consent 
agenda. 
 
ACTION: With all in favor, the motion passed.  

6. ACTION ITEMS 

6.1 Appointment of MPAC 2nd Vice Chair 

Chair Clark called on Mayor Jerry Willey to discuss the appointment of the MPAC 2nd Vice Chair. Mr. 
Wiley made the recommendation that the committee appoint Mayor Denny Doyle.  
 
Member discussion included: 
 



 

 
11/09/16 MPAC Minutes   3  

 Councilor Marc San Soucie mentioned that a nominating committee was convened at the 
last MPAC meeting to make a nomination to fill the vacancy.  

 Councilor Carlotta Collette noted that Mayor-Elect Ted Wheeler had expressed interest in 
taking a proactive role in both MPAC and JPACT. 
 

MOTION: Mayor Peter Truax moved, and Councilor Jeff Gudman seconded, to adopt the 
Appointment of MPAC 2nd Vice Chair. 
 
ACTION: With all in favor, the motion passed.  

7. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

7.1 Equitable Housing and Development Grants Recommendations 

Chair Clark provided an update on the Metro Chief Operating Officer recommendations on the 
Equitable Housing Planning and Development Grants that Metro Council would be considering on 
December 1, 2016. He shared Metro’s efforts to engage the region in discussions on potential 
regional policy solutions and strategies to deal with the affordable housing challenge. He 
introduced Metro Councilor Carlotta Collette and Metro Staff Mr. Gerry Uba to discuss 
recommendations. 

Key elements of the presentation included: 

Councilor Collette mentioned that affordable housing was a regional issue and that Metro was 
looking to work through the crisis. She mentioned that in February, Metro worked to dedicate 
money in a series of grants for community development. She mentioned her work as the Metro 
Council liaison to the grant program and the effort that was put in by staff and volunteers to 
address and meet the requirements of the grant applications. 

Ms. Elissa Gertler, Metro Director of Planning and Development, spoke on Metro investments in the 
region for equitable housing. She mentioned that the meeting packet included a list of project 
recommendations for funding. She discussed several of the projects and the variety of approaches 
to address the issue. She continued to discuss different scenarios and methods to compare the 
effectiveness and cost achievability. She noted equity as an issue and a requirement of the Diversity, 
Equity and Inclusion Strategic Plan for the grant program. She concluded that the goal was to gain 
insight on the different methods moving forward. 

Member discussion included: 

 Councilor Collette mentioned Multnomah County as an applicant in the equitable housing 
program, but that they did not choose to move forward. She added that this allowed all 
applications received to be recommended for funding. 

 Councilor Harrington advised that underserved communities should be engaged in the 
process of approving applications. 

7.2 2018 Regional Transportation Plan: Project Update and Background for Regional 
Leadership Forum #3 (Connecting Our Vision and Values to Our Priorities) 



 

 
11/09/16 MPAC Minutes   4  

Chair Clark brought to attention the Regional Transit Strategy. He introduced Councilor Stacey to 
discuss the Regional Leadership Forums that Metro Council convened for MPAC and JPACT 
members. He introduced Ms. Kim Ellis, Metro staff, to lead the discussion. 

Key elements of the presentation included: 

Mr. John Williams, Metro Deputy Director of Planning and Development, explained that the regional 
transportation system was used to deliver a land use vision. He continued to mention that work 
would be done to ensure the vision and projects were serving communities. He stated that he would 
recap on the first two Regional Leadership Forums while Ms. Kim Ellis would discuss the agenda for 
the upcoming forum. He discussed the need for a Regional Transportation Plan as a federal 
requirement and certain challenges of safety, aging infrastructure, technology, and housing. He 
stated that the next forum would focus on transportation funding and investment. 

Ms. Kim Ellis stated that leadership forums were a centerpiece on community engagement and that 
they helped build partnerships and long term relationships. She mentioned that there had been 
broad support for the priorities of the community and region and emphasized that there was a need 
to build a pathway towards funding. She noted that the Transit Snapshot highlighted challenges 
that people and businesses faced using transit. She added that the goal was to find general 
consensus and agreement to make recommendations to the Metro Council.  She stated that the next 
forum was on December 2, 2016 and recommendations would be brought back in February of 
2017.  

Member discussion included: 

 Mayor Willey asked clarifying questions on the focus of the upcoming forum and mentioned 
overcoming limitations of funding constraints. Ms. Ellis stated that the focus of the 
upcoming forum would be on developing a regional transit strategy and the need was to 
focus on what could be achieved with realistic funding goals.  

 Mayor Truax mentioned the local gas tax as an option to consider observing as significant 
across the state. 

 Mayor Mark Gamba noted Mayor Willey’s concern on funding as a limitation and a need to 
have realistic aspirations. He mentioned that there was not a negative effect of having a 
robust plan and gave examples of Milwaukie having an unconstrained plan of building a 
walkable city.  

 Councilor Jerry Hinton mentioned the need of local business involvement in the 
development of an effective plan. He asked clarifying questions about the Powell-Division 
project timing. Councilor Collette discussed the locally preferred alternative as having to 
first be approved by the jurisdictions, then a federal environmental review, and then a 
design and determination of complementary projects. 

 Mr. John Williams mentioned that the intent was to come up with a robust plan matched 
with ambition in the region. He stated that the forums would help the decision making 
processes by identifying gaps are and achievable outcomes. 

 Ms. Kim Ellis mentioned that the current plan did not include road related maintenance and 
that there was underinvestment in the maintenance of the transit system. She stated that 
there was a need to develop a plan that could be compelling and a need for commitment to 
funding. 



 

 
11/09/16 MPAC Minutes   5  

 Councilor Collette mentioned prior joint meetings used to identify what could be committed 
for investment. She stated a need for federal support and the importance of identifying 
financial constraints. 

 Mr. John Griffith mentioned Intel and their role in smart car development and a corporate 
strategy to transportation. 

 Mayor Gamba stated that members may need to have financial aspiration and to highlight 
new technology for inspiration to design a transportation concept for the future. 

 Councilor Marc San Soucie mentioned room to explore new technologies and discussed 
certain impacts to the transit system. 

7.3 2018 RTP: Regional Transit Strategy – Regional Transit Vision 

Chair Clark introduced the next item on the agenda to indentify the regions High Capacity Transit 
priority areas as well as working with transit providers and regional partners to identify strategies 
and develop implementation plans to make transit more frequent, convenient, accessible, and 
affordable. He mentioned that the Regional Transit Vision was a collaborative effort and introduced 
Ms. Jamie Snook, Metro staff, to lead the discussion. 

Key elements of the discussion included: 

Ms. Jamie Snook mentioned how the Regional Transit Strategy supports the Regional Transit Plan. 
She discussed the development of past work with partners in the region to build a transit vision 
leading to implementation. She touched on how growth in the region was linked to congestion and 
emphasized that the idea was to focus on growth and how to align strategies with needs. She 
discussed the role of the Climate Smart Strategy and a need to make transit accessible and 
affordable. She stated one goal was to improve reliability and to make public transit competitive 
with automotive transit. She mentioned a list of transit providers and ways to align capital 
investment with service.  She discussed enhancement corridors needing improvements so that the 
next generation transit authority could utilize a combination of transit modes. She stated a need to 
identify a clear process on what projects were ready to move forward to develop a shared strategy.  

Member discussion included: 

 Mayor Gamba mentioned a report on Powell-Division Bus Rapid Transit and if it was being 
designed with a separate lane or hybrid with current traffic lanes. Ms. Gertler mentioned 
that it would be a combination with a priority entrance lane in the corridor. 

 Mayor Willey asked if service enhancement plans were coordinated or duplicated. Ms. 
Snook responded that they  grew from the current service enhancement plan and street car 
expansion plan. She mentioned conversations with TriMet to develop a system in which the 
City of Portland was not the main transit hub. 

 Mr. Craig Prosser built off Mayor Willey and highlighted the need for TriMet to identify 
areas for service enhancement plans. 

 Councilor Marc San Soucie asked how to ensure that planning staff was able to provide 
correct input to integrate the regional transit strategy into their current planning 
framework. Ms. Snook stated that there was an open door policy in discussions with staff on 
gaining input and guidance, and that she was available to answer questions on large scale 
transit vision development. 



 

 
11/09/16 MPAC Minutes   6  

ADJOURN 

Closing remarks of MPAC members included: 

 Chair Clark mentioned that the November 23, 2016 MPAC meeting was cancelled and that 
there were no meetings scheduled for December 2016. He encouraged members to attend 
the 2016 Regional Leadership Forum on December 2. 
 

MPAC Chair Tim Clark adjourned the meeting at 6:34 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

  

 

 

Christopher Spencer 

Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
11/09/16 MPAC Minutes   7  

ATTACHMENTS TO THE PUBLIC RECORD FOR THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 09, 2016 
 

 

 

ITEM 
DOCUMENT 

TYPE 
DOC 

DATE 
DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION DOCUMENT NO. 

N/A Memo 11/08/2016 Urban Growth Readiness Task Force 
recommendations 

110916m-01 

7.1 Handout 
October 

2016 
Regional Housing Snapshot 110916m-02 

7.2 PowerPoint 11/09/2016 2018 Regional Transportation Plan: Building 
the Future We Want 

110916m-03 

7.3 PowerPoint 11/09/2016 
Regional Transportation Strategy: A Component 
of the 2018 RTP 

110916m-04 

N/A Handout 
November 

2016 
Parks and Nature 2015-16 Annual Report 110916m-05 

N/A Handout 
November 

2016 
November Metro Hotsheet 110916m-06 

















METRO 
PEOPLE PLACES 

OPEN SPACES 

METRO CHARTER 
Effective January 8, 2015 

Filed by the Metro Charter Committee with the elections officer of the Portland area 
metropolitan service district, pursuant to ORS 268.730 approved by district voters at the 
November 7, 1992 general election; as amended by district voters at the November 7, 2000 
general election; and amended by the district voters at the May 21, 2002 primary election; and 
amended by district voters at the November 4, 2014 general election. 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Cow1ties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 



METRO CHARTER 
Table of Contents 

Page 

P"REA:MB.LE ............................................................................................................................................... 1 

CHAPTER I NAMES AND BO'UNDARIES ......................................................................................... 1 
Section 1. Title of Charter .................................................................................................................... l 
Section 2. Name of Regional Government .......................................................................................... l 
Section 3. Boundaries .......................................................................................................................... 1 

CHAPTER II FUNCTIONS AND POWERS ......................................................................................... 1 
Section 4. Jurisdiction of Metro ........................................................................................................... 1 
Section 5. Regional Planning Functions .............................................................................................. 1 

( 1) Future Vision .............................................................................................................................. 1 
(b) Adoption ................................................................................................................................. l 
(b) Matters Addressed .................................................................................................................. 2 
(c) Development ........................................................................................................................... 2 
(d) Review and Amendment. ........................................................................................................ 2 
(e) Effect ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

(2) Regional Framework Plan .......................................................................................................... 2 
(a) Adoption ................................................................................................................................. 2 
(b) Matters Addressed .................................................................................................................. 2 
(c) Effect ...................................................................................................................................... 3 
( d) Amendment. ............................................................................................................................ 3 
( e) Implementation ....................................................................................................................... 3 

(3) Priority and Funding of Regional Planning Activities ............................................................... 3 
( 4) Protection of Livability of Existing Neighborhoods .................................................................. 3 

(a) Livability Protection ............................................................................................................... 3 
(b) Density increase Prohibited .................................................................................................... 3 
( c) Report on Effects of Proposed Urban Growth Boundary Amendment .................................. 4 
( d) Implementation ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Section 6. Other Assigned Functions .................................................................................................... 4 
Section 7. Assumption of Additional Functions .................................................................................. 4 

( 1) Assumption Ordinance ............................................................................................................... 4 
(2) Assumption of Local Government Service Function ................................................................. 5 
(3) Assumption of Other Service Functions .................................................................................... 5 
(4) Assumption of Functions and Operations of Mass Transit District ........................................... 5 
(5) Boundary Commission Functions .............................................................................................. 5 

Section 8. Preservation of Authority to Contract ................................................................................. 5 
Section 9. General Grant of Powers to Carry Out Functions; Construction of Specified Powers ....... 6 

CHAPTERIDFIN'ANCE ................................................................................................... ~····················,· 6 
Section 10. General Authority ............................................................................................................... 6 
Section 11. Voter Approval of Certain Taxes ........................................................................................ 6 
Section 12. Voter Approval of General Obligation Bonds .................................................................... 6 
Section 13. Prior Consultation for Tax Imposition ................................................................................ 6 
Section 14. Limitations on Expenditures of Certain Tax Revenues ....................................................... 6 

( 1) Generally .................................................................................................................................... 6 
(2) Exclusions From Limitation ....................................................................................................... 7 

Section 15. Limitations on Amount of User Charges ............................................................................ 7 

Metro Charter~ Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 



METRO CHARTER 
Table of Contents 

Page 

CHAPTER IV FORM OF GOVERNMENT ........................................................................................... 7 
Section 16. Metro Council ..................................................................................................................... 7 

(1) Creation and Powers ................................................................................................................... 7 
(2) Composition ............................................................................................................................... 7 
(3) Initial Tenns of Office ................................................................................................................ 7 
( 4) Presiding Officer, Council President ..................................... ' ..................................................... 7 

(a) Presiding Officer ..................................................................................................................... 7 
(b) Council President. ................................................................................................................... 7 

(5) Annual Organizing Resolution ................................................................................................... 8 
( 6) Council Meetings ....................................................................................................................... 8 
(7) Quorum ....................................................................................................................................... 8 
(8) Record of Proceedings ................................................................................................................ 8 

Section 17. Metro Auditor ....................................................... : ............................................................. 8 
( 1) Creation ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
(2) First Election; Disqualification for Other Metro Elected Offices .............................................. 8 
(3) Duties ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 18. Tenn of Office .................................................................................................................... 8 

CHAPTER V OFFICERS, COMMISSIONS AND EMPLOYEES ..................................................... 9 
Section 19. Qualifications of Elected Officers ....................................................................................... 9 

( 1) Councilor .................................................................................................................................... 9 
(2) Council President and Auditor ................................................................................................... 9 
(3) Multiple Elected Offices ............................................................................................................ 9 
( 4) Judging Elections and Qualifications ......................................................................................... 9 

Section 20. Compensation of Elected Officers ...................................................................................... 9 
(1) Council ....................................................................................................................................... 9 
(2) Auditor ....................................................................................................................................... 9 
(3) Full Compensation ..................................................................................................................... 9 

Section 21. Oath ................................................................................................................................... 1 0 
Section 22. Vacancies in Office ........................................................................................................... 10 

(1) Councilor .................................................................................................................................. 10 
(2) Council President and Auditor ................................................................................................. I 0 
(3) Vacancy After Reapportionment .............................................................................................. 10 
(4) Determination ofVacancy ........................................................................................................ 10 

Section 23. Filling Vacancies ............................................................................................................... 10 
Section 24. Limitations of Tenns of Office ......................................................................................... 10 
Section 25. Appointive Offices and Commissions ............................................................................... 11 

( 1) Chief Operating Officer ............................................................................................................ 11 
(2) Metro Attorney ......................................................................................................................... 11 
(3) Other Offices ............................................................................................................................ 11 
( 4) Commissions ............................................................................................................................ 11 

Section 26. Metro Policy Advisory Committee ................................................................................... 11 
( 1) Creation and Composition ........................................................................................................ 11 
(2) Change of Composition ............................................................................................................ 12 
(3) Duties ........................................................................................................................................ 12 
( 4) By laws ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

ii 



METRO CHARTER 
Table of Contents 

Page 

Section 27. Metro Office of Citizen Involvement.. .............................................................................. 13 
( 1) Creation and Purpose ................................................................................................................ 13 
(2) Citizens' Committee in Office of Citizen Involvement ............................................................ 13 

CHAPTER VI ELECTIONS AND REAPPORTIONMENT ............................................................... 13 
Section 28. State Law ........................................................................................................................... 13 
Section 29. Elections of Metro Officers ............................................................................................... 13 

( 1) Generally .................................................................................................................................. 13 
(2) Nonpartisan Offices .................................................................................................................. 13 

Section 30. Multiple Candidacies ........................................................................................................ 13 
Section 31. Reappotionment ............................................................................................................... 13 

( 1) General Requirements .............................................................................................................. 13 
(2) Failure to Reapportion .............................................................................................................. 13 
(3) Redistricting After Year 2000 Census ...................................................................................... 14 

Section 32. Recall ................................................................................................................................ 14 
( 1) Generally . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 
(2) Effect of Reappotionment ........................................................................................................ 14 

Section 33. Initiative and Referendum ................................................................................................. 14 
Section 34. Amendment and Revision of Charter ................................................................................ 14 

CHAPTER VII ORDINANCES ............................................................................................................. 14 
Section 35. Ordaining Clause ............................................................................................................... 14 
Section 36. Adoption by Council ......................................................................................................... 14 

(1) General Requirements .............................................................................................................. 14 
(2) hnmediate Adoption ................................................................................................................. 15 
(3) Vote Required .......................................................................................................................... 15 

Section 37. Endorsement .......................................................... : ........................................................... 15 
Section 38. Effective Date of Ordinances ............................................................................................ 15 

(1) Generally .................................................................................................................................. 15 
(2) Ref erred Ordinances ................................................................................................................. 15 

Section 39. Content of Ordinances ....................................................................................................... 15 
Section 40. Public Improvements and Special Assessments ................................................................ 15 

CHAPTER VIII MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .......................................................................... 16 
Section 41. Transition Provisions ........................................................................................................ 16 
Section 42. Effective Date .............................................................................................. : .................... 16 
Section 43. Severability ....................................................................................................................... 16 
Section 44. State Legislation ................................................................................................................ 16 
Section 45. Further Transition Provisions ............................................................................................ 16 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackama~ Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

iii 



PREAMBLE 

We, the people of the Portland area metropolitan service district, in order to establish an elected, 
visible and accountable regional government that is responsive to the citizens of the region and 
works cooperatively with our local governments; that undertakes, as its most important service, 
planning and policy making to preserve and enhance the quality of life and the environment for 
ourselves and future generatiOns; and that provides regional services needed and desired by the 
citizens in an efficient and effective manner, do ordain this charter for the Portland area 
metropolitan service district, to be known as Metro. 

Section 1. 

CHAPTER I 
NAMES AND BOUNDARIES 

The title of this charter is the 1992 Metro Charter. 

Section 2. Name of Regional Government. The Portland area metropolitan service 
district, referred to in this charter as the "Metropolitan Service District," continues under this 
charter as a metropolitan service district with the name "Metro." 

Section 3. Boundaries. The Metro Area of governance includes all territory within 
the boundaries of the Metropolitan Service District on the effective date of this charter and any 
territory later annexed or subjected to Metro governance under state law. This charter refers to 
that area as the "Metro Area." Changes of Metro boundaries are not effective unless approved 
by ordinance. No change of Metro boundaries requires approval by a local government 
boundary commission or any other state agency unless required by law. The custodian of Metro 
records shall keep an accurate description of Metro boundaries and make it available for public 
inspection. 

CHAPTER II 
FUNCTIONS AND POWERS 

Section 4. Jurisdiction of Metro. Metro has jurisdiction over matters of metropolitan 
concern. Matters of metropolitan concern include the powers granted to and duties imposed on 
Metro by current and future state law and those matters the Council by ordinance determines to 
be of metropolitan concern. The Council shall specify by ordinance the extent to which Metro 
exercises jurisdiction over matters of metropolitan concern. 

Section 5. Regional Planning Functions. 

(1) Future Vision. 

(a) Adoption. The Council shall adopt a Future Vision for the region between 
January 15, 1995 and July 1, 1995. The Future Vision is a conceptual statement that indicates 
population levels and settlement patterns that the region can accommodate within the carrying 
capacity of the land, water and air resources of the region, and its educational and economic 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

1 



resources, and that achieves a desired quality of life. The Future Vision is a long-term, visionary 
outlook for at least a 50-year period. As used in this section, "region" means the Metro Area and 
adjacent areas. 

(b) Matters Addressed. The matters addressed by the Future Vision include 
but are not limited to: (1) use, restoration and preservation of regional land and natural resources 
for the benefit of present and future generations; (2) how and where to accommodate the 
population growth for the region while maintaining a desired quality of life for its residents; and 
(3) how to develop new communities and additions to the existing urban areas in well-planned 
ways. 

( c) Development. The Council shall appoint a commission to develop and 
recommend a proposed Future Vision by a date the Council sets. The commission shall be 
broadly representative of both public and private sectors, including the academic community, in 
the region. At least one member must reside outside the Metro Area. The commission has 
authority to seek any necessary information and shall consider all relevant information and 
public comment in developing the proposed Future Vision. Tue commission serves without 
compensation. 

( d) Review and Amendment. The Future Vision may be reviewed and 
amended as provided by ordinance. The Future Vision shall be completely reviewed and revised 
at least every fifteen years in the manner specified in subsection (1 )( c) of this section. 

( e) Effect. The Future Vision is not a regulatory document. It is the intent of 
this charter that the Future Vision have no effect that would allow court or agency review of it. 

(2) Regional Framework Plan. 

(a) Adoption. The Council shall adopt a regional framework plan by 
December 31, 1997 with the consultation and advice of the Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MP AC) created under Section 26 of this charter. The Council may adopt the regional 
framework plan in components. 

(b) Matters Addressed. The regional framework plan shall address: 
(1) regional transportation and mass transit systems; (2) management and amendment of the 
urban growth boundary; (3) protection of lands outside the urban growth boundary for natural 
resource, future urban or other uses; ( 4) housing densities, (5) urban design and settlement 
patterns; (6) parks, open spaces and recreational facilities; (7) water sources and storage; 
(8) coordination, to the extent feasible, of Metro growth management and land use planning 
policies with those of Clark County, Washington; and (9) planning responsibilities mandated by 
state law. The regional framework plan shall also address other growth management and land 
use planning matters which the Council, with the consultation and advice of the MP AC, 
determines are of metropolitan concern and will benefit from regional planning. To encourage 
regional uniformity, the regional framework plan shall also contain model terminology, 
standards and procedures for local land use decision making that may be adopted by local 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

2 



governments. As used in this section, "local" refers only to the cities and counties within the 
jurisdiction of Metro. 

(c) Effect. The regional framework plan shall: (I) describe its relationship to 
the Future Vision; (2) comply with applicable statewide planning goals; (3) be subject to 
compliance acknowledgment by the Land Conservation and Development Commission or its 
successor; and (4) be the basis for coordination of local comprehensive plans and implementing 
regulations. 

( d) Amendment. The Council may amend the regional framework plan after 
seeking the consultation and advice of the MPAC. 

(e) Implementation. To the maximum extent allowed by law, the Council 
shall adopt ordinances: (1) requiring local comprehensive plans and implementing regulations to 
comply with the regional framework plan within three years after adoption of the entire regional 
framework plan. If the regional framework plan is subject to compliance acknowledgment, local 
plans and implementing regulations shall be required to comply with the regional framework 
plan within two years of compliance acknowledgment; (2) requiring the Council to adjudicate 
and determine the consistency of local comprehensive plans with the regional framework plan; 
(3) requiring each city and county within the jurisdiction of Metro to make local land use 
decisions consistent with the regional framework plan until its comprehensive plan has been 
determined to be consistent with the regional framework plan. The obligation to apply the 
regional framework plan to local land use decisions shall not begin until one year after adoption 
and compliance acknowledgment of the regional framework plan; and (4) allowing the Council 
to require changes in local land use standards and procedures if the Council determines changes 
are necessary to remedy a pattern or practice of decision making inconsistent with the regional 
framework plan. 

(3) Priority and Funding of Regional Planning Activities. The regional planning 
functions under this section are the primary functions of Metro. The Council shall appropriate 
funds sufficient to assure timely completion of those functions. 

( 4) Protection of Livability of Existing Neighborhoods. 

(a) Livability Protection. The Regional Framework Plan shall include 
measures to protect the livability of existing neighborhoods taking into consideration air 
pollution, water pollution, noise, and crime as well as provision of an adequate level of police, 
fire, transportation and emergency services, public utilities, and access to parks, open space and 
neighborhood services. 

(b) Density Increase Prohibited. Neither the Regional Framework Plan nor 
any Metro ordinance adopted to implement the plan shall require an increase in the density of 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

3 



single-family neighborhoods within the existing urban growth boundary identified in the plan 
solely as Inner or Outer Neighborhoods. 1 

(c) Report on Effects of Proposed Urban Growth Boundary Amendment. 
Prior to approving any amendment or amendments of the urban growth boundary in excess of 
100 acres the Council shall prepare a report on the effect of the proposed amendments on 
existing residential neighborhoods. Copies of the completed report shall be provided to all 
households located within one mile of the proposed urban growth boundary amendment area and 
to all cities and counties within the district. The report shall address: 

i. Traffic patterns and any resulting increase in traffic congestion, 
commute times and air quality. 

n. Whether parks and open space protection in the area to be added 
will benefit existing residents of the district as well as future 
residents of the added territory. 

ui. The cost impacts on existing residents of providing needed public 
services and public infrastructure to the area to be added. 

(d) Implementation. The Metro Council shall implement the requirements 
contained in Subsections a, b, and c within one year of adoption thereof. 

Section 6. Other Assigned Functions. Metro is also authorized to exercise the 
following functions: (1) Acquisition, development, maintenance and operation of: (a) a 
metropolitan zoo, (b) public cultural, trade, convention, exhibition, sports, entertainment, and 
spectator facilities, ( c) facilities for the disposal of solid and liquid wastes, and ( d) a system of 
parks, open spaces and recreational facilities of metropolitan concern; (2) disposal of solid and 
liquid wastes; (3) metropolitan aspects of natural disaster planning and response coordination; 
(4) development and marketing of data; and (5) any other function required by state law or 
assigned to the Metropolitan Service District or Metro by the voters. 

Section 7. Assumption of Additional Functions. 

(1) Assumption Ordinance. The Council shall approve by ordinance the undertaking 
by Metro of any function not authorized by Sections 5 and 6 of this charter. The ordinance shall 

(a) Subsection 4(b) of Section 5 of the Metro Charter is repealed on June 30, 2031 unless 
at the general election held in 2030, a majority of the electors voting on the question of 
whether or not to retain Subsection 4(b) of Section 5 of the Metro Charter as part of the 
Metro Charter vote to retain the subsection. If the electors vote to retain the 
subsection, Subsection 4(b) of Section 5 of the Metro Charter of this measure shall 
remain in effect. If a majority of the electors do not vote to retain Subsection 4(b) of 
Section 5 of the Metro Charter, then that subsection is repealed on June 30, 2031. 

(b) By appropriate action of the Metro Council, the question described in subsection (a) of 
this section shall be submitted to the people for their decision at the general election 
held in 2030. 

(c) This section is repealed on January 1, 2032. 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

4 



contain a finding that the function is of metropolitan concern and the reasons it is appropriate for 
Metro to undertake it. 

(2) Assumption of Local Government Service Function. 

(a) An ordinance authorizing provision or regulation by Metro of a local 
government service is not effective unless the ordinance is approved by the voters of Metro or a 
majority of the members of the MP AC. Voter approval may occur by approval of a referred 
measure (1) authorizing the function or (2) relating to finances and authorizing financing or 
identifying funds to be used for exercise of the function. As used in this section, "local 
government service" is a service provided to constituents by one or more cities, counties or 
special districts within the jurisdiction of Metro at the time a Metro ordinance on assumption of 
the service is first introduced. 

(b) An ordinance submitted to the MPAC for approval is deemed approved 
unless disapproved within 60 days after submission. 

(c) No approval under this subsection is required for the compensated 
provision of services by Metro to or on behalf of a local government under an agreement with 
that government. 

(3) Assumption of Other Service Functions. The Council shall seek the advice of the 
MP AC before adopting an ordinance authorizing provision or regulation by Metro of a service, 
which is not a local government service. 

( 4) Assumption of Functions and Operations of Mass Transit District. 
Notwithstanding subsection (2) of this section, Metro may at any time assume the duties, 
functions, powers and operations of a mass transit district by ordinance. Before adoption of this 
ordinance the Council shall seek the advice of the Joint Policy Advisory Committee on 
Transportation or its successor. After assuming the functions and operations of a mass transit 
district, the Council shall establish a mass transit commission of not fewer than seven members 
and determine its duties in administering mass transit functions for Metro. The members of the 
governing body of the mass transit district at the time of its assumption by Metro are members of 
the initial Metro mass transit commission for the remainder of their respective terms of office. 

(5) Boundary Commission Functions. The Council shall undertake and complete a 
study of the Portland Metropolitan Area Local Government Boundary Commission, with advice 
of the MPAC, by September 1, 1995. The Council shall implement the results of the study and 
shall seek any legislative action needed for implementation. 

Section 8. Preservation of Authority to Contract. All Metro officers shall preserve, 
to the greatest extent possible, the ability of Metro to contract for all services with persons or 
entities who are not Metro employees. 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

5 



Section 9. General Grant of Powers to Carry Out Functions; Construction of 
Specified Powers. When carrying out the functions authorized or assumed under this charter: 
(1) Metro has all powers that the laws of the United States and this state now or in the future 
could allow Metro just as if this charter specifically set out each of those powers; (2) the powers 
specified in.this charter are not exclusive; (3) any specification of power in this charter is not 
intended to limit authority; and ( 4) the powers specified in this charter shall be construed 
liberally. 

CHAPTER III 
FINANCE 

Section 10. General Authority. Except as prohibited by law or restricted by this 
charter, Metro may impose, levy and collect taxes and may issue revenue bonds, general and 
special obligation bonds, certificates of participation and other obligations. The authority 
provided under this section supplements any authority otherwise granted by law. 

Section 11. Voter Approval of Certain Taxes. Any ordinance of the Council imposing 
broadly based taxes of general applicability on the personal income, business income, payroll, 
property, or sales of goods or services of all, or a number of classes of, persons or entities in the 
region requires approval of the voters of Metro before taking effect This approval is not 
required (1) to continue property taxes imposed by the Metropolitan Service District, (2) for the 
rate or amount of any payroll tax imposed by a mass transit district as of June 1, 1992, if the 
functions of that district are assumed by Metro, or (3) for additional payroll tax revenues for 
mass transit imposed to replace revenues lost by withdrawal of any locality from the service area 
of the mass transit district after June 1, 1992. For purposes of Sections 11, 13 and 14 of this 
charter, "taxes" do not include any user charge, service fee, franchise fee, charge for the issuance 
of any franchise, license, permit or approval, or any benefit assessment against property. 

Section 12. Voter Approval of General Obligation Bonds. Issuance of general 
obligation bonds payable from ad valorem property taxes requires the approval of the voters of 
Metro. 

Section 13. Prior Consultation for Tax Imposition. Before imposing any new tax for 
which voter approval is not required, the Council shall establish and seek the advice of a tax 
study committee that includes members appointed from the general population, and from among 
businesses and the governments of cities, counties, special districts and school districts, of the 
Metro Area. 

Section 14. Limitations on Expenditures of Certain Tax Revenues. 

( 1) Generally. Except as provided in this section, for the first fiscal year after this 
charter takes effect Metro may make no more than $12,500,000 in expenditures on a cash basis 
from taxes imposed and received by Metro and interest and other earnings on those taxes. This 
expenditure limitation increases in each subsequent fiscal year by a percentage equal to (a) the 
rate of increase in the Consumer Price Index, All Items, for Portland-Vancouver (All Urban 
Consumers) as determined by the appropriate federal agency or (b) the most nearly equivalent 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

6 



index as determined by the Council if the index described in (a) is discontinued. 

(2) Exclusions From Limitation. This section does not apply to (a) taxes approved by 
the voters of Metro or the Metropolitan Service District and interest and other earnings on those 
taxes, (b) payroll taxes specified in Section 11 of this charter, and (c) tax increment financing 
charges on property. 

Section 15. Limitations on Amount of User Charges. Except to the extent receipts in 
excess of costs from food and beverage sales, parking and other concessions are dedicated to 
reducing charges for the provision of goods or services to which the concession directly relates, 
charges for the provision of goods or services by Metro may not exceed the costs of providing 
the goods or services. These costs include, but are not limited to, costs of personal services, 
materials, capital outlay, debt service, operating expenses, overhead expenses, and capital and 
operational reserves attributable to the good or service. 

CHAPTER IV 
FORM OF GOVERNMENT 

Section 16. Metro Council. 

(1) Creation and Powers. The Metro Council is created as the governing body of 
Metro. Except as this charter provides otherwise, and except for initiative and referendum 
powers reserved to the voters of Metro, all Metro powers are vested in the Council. 

(2) Composition. Beginning January 6, 2003, the Council consists of seven (7) 
councilors, one of whom shall be elected at large and designated President of the Council and six 
(6) each nominated and elected from a single district within the Metro Area. Until that date the 
Council consists of the seven (7) members of the Metro Council whose terms begin or continue 
in January 2001 and whose districts continue until replaced. 

(3) Initial Terms of Office. The terms of office of the four Councilors receiving the 
highest number of votes among the seven Councilors elected in 1994 end January 4, 1999. The 
terms of office of the other three Councilors end January 6, 1997. Thereafter the term of office 
of Councilor is four years. 

(4) Presiding Officer, Council President. 

(a) Presiding Officer. At its first meeting each year before 2003, the Council 
shall elect a presiding officer from its Councilors. 

(b) Council President. The Council President presides over the Council. The 
Council President sets the Council agenda subject to general rules established by a Council 
adopted ordinance. Except as provided otherwise by the Metro Charter, the Council President 
appoints all members of the committees, commissions and boards created by the rules of the 
Council and ordinances of Metro. 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

7 



(5) Annual Organizing Resolution. At the first Council meeting each January the 
Council shall adopt an annual organizing resolution naming a deputy and establishing such 
committees as the Council deems necessary for the orderly conduct of Council business. 

( 6) Council Meetings. The Council shall meet regularly in the Metro Area at times 
and places it designates. The Council shall prescribe by ordinance the rules to govern conduct of 
its meetings. Except as this charter provides otherwise, the agreement of a majority of 
Councilors present and constituting a quorum is necessary to decide affirmatively a question 
before the Council. 

(7) Quorum. A majority of Councilors in office is a quorum for Council business, but 
fewer Councilors may compel absent Councilors to attend. 

(8) Record of Proceedings. The Council shall keep and authenticate a record of 
Council proceedings. 

Section 17. Metro Auditor. 

(1) Creation. The office of Metro Auditor is created. The Auditor is elected from the 
Metro Area at large for a term of four years. The Auditor serves full time and may not be 
employed by any other person or entity while serving as Auditor. 

(2) First Election; Disqualification for Other Metro Elected Offices. The Auditor is 
first elected in the first statewide primary or general election after adoption of this charter for a 
term beginning January 2, 1995. During the term for which elected, and for four years thereafter, 
the Auditor is ineligible to hold the office of Metro Councilor. 

(3) Duties. The Auditor shall: (a) make continuous investigations of the operations 
of Metro including financial and performance auditing and review of financial transactions, 
personnel, equipment, facilities, and all other aspects of those operations, and (b) make reports to 
the Metro Council of the results of any investigation with any recommendations for remedial 
action. Except as provided in this section, the Auditor may not be given responsibility to 
perform any executive function. 

Section 18. Term of Office. The term of office of an officer elected at a primary or 
general election begins the first Monday of the year following election and continues until a 
successor assumes the office. 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

8 



CHAPTERV 
OFFICERS, COMMISSIONS AND EMPLOYEES 

Section 19. Qualifications of Elected Officers. 

(1) Councilor. A Councilor shall be a qualified elector under the constitution of this 
state when his or her term of office begins and shall have resided during the preceding 12 months 
in the district from which elected or appointed. When the boundaries of that district have been 
apportioned or reapportioned during that period, residency in that district for purposes of this 
subsection includes residency in any former district with area in the district from which the 
Councilor is elected or appointed if residency is established in the apportioned or reapportioned 
district within 60 days after the apportionment or reapportionment is effective. 

(2) Council President and Auditor. The Council President and Auditor shall each be 
a qualified elector under the constitution of this state when his or her term of office begins and 
shall have resided during the preceding 12 months within the boundaries of Metro as they exist 
when the term of office begins. At the time of election or appointment, the Auditor shall also 
hold the designation of certified public accountant or certified internal auditor. 

(3) Multiple Elected Offices. A Metro elected officer may not be an elected officer 
of the state, or a city, county or special district during his or her term of office. As used in this 
charter, special district does not include school districts. 

(4) Judging Elections and Qualifications. The Council is the judge of the election and 
qualification of its members. 

Section 20. Compensation of Elected Officers. 

(1) Council. Prior to 2003, the salary of the presiding officer is two-thirds the salary 
of a circuit court judge of this state and the salary of every other Councilor is one-third the salary 
of a circuit court judge of this state. Beginning January 6, 2003, the salary of the Council 
President shall be that of a circuit court judge of this state and the salary of every other Councilor 
is one-third the salary of a circuit court judge. A Councilor may waive a salary. 

(2) Auditor. The salary of the Auditor is eighty percent of the salary of a circuit court 
judge of this state. 

(3) Full Compensation. Elected officers' compensation, as established by this 
charter, shall be the elected officers' full and exclusive compensation for their duties as Metro 
officers or for any duties or responsibilities resulting from their position. This section does not 
preclude elected officers from receiving ordinary employee fringe benefits or being reimbursed 
for any actual and reasonable expenses incurred by an elected officer in the course of performing 
official duties. 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

9 



Section 21. Oath. Before assuming office a Metro elected officer shall take an oath or 
affirm that he or she will faithfully perform the duties of the office and support the constitutions 
and laws of the United States and this state and the charter and laws of Metro. 

Section 22. Vacancies in Office. 

(1) Councilor. The office of Councilor becomes vacant upon the incumbent's: 
(a) death, (b) adjudicated incompetency, (c) recall from office, (d) failure following election or 
appointment to qualify for the office within 10 days after the time for his or her term of office to 
begin, ( e) absence from all meetings of the Council within a 60 day period without the Council's 
consent, (f) ceasing to reside in the district from which elected or appointed, except when district 
boundaries are reapportioned and a Councilor is assigned to a district where the Councilor does 
not reside and the Councilor becomes a resident of the reapportioned district within 60 days after 
the reapportionment is effective, (g) ceasing to be a qualified elector under state law, 
(h) conviction of a felony or conviction of a federal or state offense punishable by loss of liberty 
and pertaining to his or her office, (i) resignation from office, or G) becoming an elected officer 
of the state or a city, county or special district. 

(2) Council President and Auditor. The offices of Council President or Auditor 
become vacant in the circumstances described in subsection (l)(a)-(d) and (g)-G) of this section, 
or if the Council President or Auditor ceases to reside in the Metro Area. The office of Auditor 
also becomes vacant if the incumbent ceases to hold the designation of certified public 
accountant or certified internal auditor. 

(3) Vacancy After Reapportionment. If a Councilor vacancy occurs after the 
Councilor has been assigned to a reapportioned district under Section 31 of this charter, the 
vacancy is in the district to which that Councilor was assigned. 

( 4) Determination of Vacancy. The Council is the final judge of the existence of a 
vacancy. 

Section 23. Filling Vacancies. A majority of Councilors holding office shall fill a 
vacancy by appointment within 90 days after it occurs. The term of office of the appointee runs 
from the time he or she qualifies for the office after appointment until a successor is duly elected 
and qualifies for the office. If the vacancy occurs more than 20 days before the first general 
election after the beginning of the term for that office, the term of office of the appointee runs 
only until the first Council meeting in the year immediately after that election. A person shall be 
elected for the remainder of the term at the first primary or general election after the beginning of 
the term. 

Section 24. Limitations of Terms of Office. No person may be elected Councilor for 
more than three consecutive full terms, not including any term or terms as Council President. No 
person may be elected Council President for more than two consecutive full terms. Any term 
served as Executive Officer shall be considered as a term served as Council President. The 
limitations of this section apply only to terms of office beginning on or after January 2, 1995. 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

10 



Section 25. Appointive Offices and Commissions. 

(1) Chief Operating Officer. The Council shall provide by ordinance for the creation 
of the office of the Chief Operating Officer. The Chief Operating Officer's duties and 
responsibilities will be more specifically established by ordinance. The Council President 
appoints the Chief Operating Officer subject to confirmation by the Council. The Chief 
Operating Officer serves at the pleasure of the Council and is subject to removal by the Council 
President with the concurrence of the Council. 

(2) Metro Attorney. The Council shall provide by ordinance for the creation of the 
office of Metro Attorney. The Council President appoints the Metro Attorney subject to the 
confirmation by the Council. The Metro Attorney serves at the pleasure of the Council and is 
subject to removal by the Council President with the concurrence of the Council. 

(3) Other Offices. The Council may provide by ordinance for the creation of other 
offices not subordinate to the Chief Operating Officer. The duties and responsibilities of these 
offices will be more specifically established by ordinance. The Council President appoints all 
other officers subject to confirmation by the Council. All other officers serve at the pleasure of 
the Council and are subject to removal by the Council President with the concurrence of the 
Council. 

( 4) Commissions. The Council may by ordinance create Commissions with duties 
and responsibilities as specified by the Council. The Council President appoints all 
Commissioners subject to confirmation by the Council. Commissioners serve at the pleasure of 
the Council and are subject to removal by the Council President with the concurrence of the 
Council. 

Section 26. Metro Policy Advisory Committee. 

(1) Creation and Composition. The Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC) is 
created. The-initial members of the MPAC are: 

(a) One member of each of the governing bodies of Washington, Clackamas 
and Multnomah Counties appointed by the body from which the member is chosen; 

(b) Two members of the governing body of the City of Portland appointed by 
that governing body; 

( c) One member of the governing body of the second largest city in population 
in Multnomah County appointed by that governing body; 

( d) One member of the governing body of the largest city in population in 
Washington County appointed by that governing body; 

( e) One member of the governing body of the largest city in population in 
Clackamas County appointed by that governing body; 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

11 



(f) One member of a governing body of a city with territory in the Metro Area 
in Multnomah County other than either the City of Portland or the second largest city in 
population in Multnomah County, appointed jointly by the governing bodies of cities with 
territory in the Metro Area in Multnomah County other than the City of Portland or the second 
largest city in population in Multnomah County; 

(g) One member of a governing body of a city with territory in the Metro Area 
in Washington County other than the city in Washington County with the largest population, 
appointed jointly by the governing bodies of cities with territory in the Metro Area in 
Washington County other than the city in Washington County with the largest population; 

(h) One member of a governing body of a city with territory in the Metro Area 
in Clackamas County other than the city in Clackamas County with the largest population, 
appointed jointly by the governing bodies of cities with territory in the Metro Area in Clackamas 
County other than the city in Clackamas County with the largest population; 

(i) One member from the governing body of a special district with territory in 
the Metro Area in Multnomah County appointed jointly by the governing bodies of special 
districts with territory in the Metro Area in Multnomah County; 

G) One member from the governing body of a special district with territory in 
the Metro Area in Washington County appointed jointly by the governing bodies of special 
districts with territory in the Metro Area in Washington County; 

(k) One member from the governing body of a special district with territory in 
the Metro Area in Clackamas County appointed jointly by the governing bodies of special 
districts with territory in the Metro Area in Clackamas County; 

(1) One member of the governing body of Tri-County Metropolitan 
Transportation District of Oregon appointed by the governing body of that district; and 

(m) Three persons appointed by the Council President and confirmed by the 
Council. No person appointed under this part of subsection (1) may be an elected officer of or 
employed by Metro, the state, or a city, county or special district. Each person appointed under 
this part of subsection ( 1) shall reside in the Metro Area during the person's tenure on the 
MPAC. 

(2) Change of Composition. A vote of both a majority of the MPAC members and a 
majority of all Councilors may change the composition of the MP AC at any time. 

(3) Duties. The MPAC shall perform the duties assigned to it by this charter and any 
other duties the Council prescribes. 

( 4) Bylaws. The MP AC shall adopt bylaws governing the conduct and record of its 
meetings and the terms of its members. 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

12 



Section 27. Metro Office of Citizen Involvement. 

(1) Creation and Purpose. The Metro Office of Citizen Involvement is created to 
develop and maintain programs and procedures to aid communication between citizens and the 
Council. 

(2) Citizens' Committee in Office of Citizen Involvement. The Council shall 
establish by ordinance (a) a citizens' committee in the office of citizen involvement and (b) a 
citizen involvement process. The Council shall appropriate sufficient funds to operate the office 
and committee. 

CHAPTER VI 
ELECTIONS AND REAPPORTIONMENT 

Section 28. State Law. Except as this charter or a Metro ordinance provides 
otherwise, a Metro election shall conform to state law applicable to the election. 

Section 29. Elections of Metro Officers. 

(1) Generally. Except for certain elections to fill a vacancy in office, the first vote for 
Councilor, Council President or Auditor occurs at an election held at the same time and places in 
the Metro Area as the statewide primary election that year. If one candidate for a Metro office 
receives a majority of the votes cast at the primary election for all candidates for that office, that 
candidate is elected. If no candidate receives a majority of the votes cast at the primary election, 
the candidates receiving the two largest numbers of votes cast for the office are the only names 
to appear on the general election ballot that year as candidates for that office. The candidate who 
receives the largest number of votes cast at the general election for that office is elected. 

(2) Nonpartisan offices. All elections of Metro officers are nonpartisan. Election 
ballots shall list the names of candidates for Metro offices without political party designations. 

Section 30. Multiple Candidacies. No person may be a candidate at a single election 
for more than one Metro elected office. 

Section 31. Reapportionment of Council Districts After Census. 

(1) General Requirements. Within three months after an official census indicates that 
the boundaries of Council districts deny equal protection of the law, the Council shall change the 
boundaries to accord equal protection of the law and shall assign Councilors to the reapportioned 
districts. As nearly as practicable, all Council districts shall be of equal population and each 
shall be contiguous and geographically compact. The Council may by ordinance specify 
additional criteria for districts that are consistent with this section. 

(2) Failure to Reapportion. If the Council fails to establish Council district 
boundaries as provided by this section, the Council President shall establish the boundaries 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

13 



within 60 days. 

(3) Redistricting After Year 2000 Census. Within three (3) months after completion 
of the year 2000 Census, the Council shall establish six ( 6) Council districts in a manner that 
accords equal protection of the law. The three (3) Councilors serving terms that expire in 
January 2005, shall each be assigned to one of the six (6) districts and their terms shall continue. 
Council members will be elected to serve four (4) year terms for the other three (3) districts in 
the regularly scheduled elections to be held in 2002. For the purpose of Section 33 of this 
charter, the seven (7) councilors in office in January 2001 shall be deemed to be serving in the 
districts from which they were elected until January 2003. 

Section 32. Recall. 

(1) Generally. An elected officer of Metro may be recalled in the manner and with 
the effect described by the constitution and laws of this state. 

(2) Effect of Reapportionment. Upon the effective date of a Council reapportionment 
under Section 32 of this charter, a Councilor is subject to recall by the voters of the district to 
which the Councilor is assigned and not by the voters of the district of that Councilor existing 
before the reapportionment. 

Section 3 3. Initiative and Referendum. The voters of Metro reserve to themselves the 
powers of initiative and referendum. The Council may provide for the exercise of those powers 
in a manner consistent with law. 

Section 34. Amendment and Revision of Charter. The Council may refer, and voters 
of Metro may initiate, amendments to this charter. A proposed charter amendment may embrace 
only one subject and matters properly connected with it. The Council shall provide by ordinance 
for a procedure to revise this charter. 

CHAPTER VII 
ORDINANCES 

Section 35. Ordaining Clause. The ordaining clause of an ordinance adopted by the 
Council is: "The Metro Council ordains as follows: ." The ordaining clause of an initiated or 
referred ordinance is: "The People of Metro ordain as follows: " 

Section 36. Adoption by Council. 

(1) General Requirements. The Council shall adopt all legislation of Metro by 
ordinance. Except as this charter otherwise provides, the Council may not adopt any ordinance 
at a meeting unless: (a) the ordinance is introduced at a previous meeting of the Council, (b) the 
title of the ordinance is included in a written agenda of the meeting at which the ordinance is 
adopted, ( c) the agenda of that meeting is publicized not less than three business days nor more 
than ten days before the meeting, and ( d) copies of the ordinance are available for public 
inspection at least three business days before that meeting. The text of an ordinance may be 

Metro Charter - Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

14 



amended, but not substantially revised, at the meeting at which it is adopted. 

(2) Immediate Adoption. The provisions of this section do not apply to an ordinance 
adopted by unanimous consent of the Council and containing findings on the need for immediate 
adoption. 

(3) Vote Required. Adoption of an ordinance requires the affirmative votes of (a) 
seven Councilors while the Council consists of 13 positions, (b) four Councilors after the 
Council consists of seven positions as provided by Section 16(2) of this charter. 

Section 37. Endorsement. The person presiding over the Council when an ordinance 
is adopted shall endorse the ordinance unless the Council prescribes a different procedure by 
general ordinance. 

Section 38. Effective Date of Ordinances. 

(1) Generally. An ordinance takes effect 90 days after its adoption unless the 
ordinance states a different effective date. An ordinance may state an earlier effective date if 
(a) an earlier date is necessary for the health, safety or welfare of the Metro Area; (b) the reasons 
why this is so are stated in an emergency clause of the ordinance; and ( c) the ordinance is 
approved by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of all Councilors. An ordinance imposing or 
changing a tax or charge, changing the boundaries of Metro, or assuming a function may not 
contain an emergency clause. 

(2) Referred Ordinances. If the Council refers an ordinance to the voters of Metro, 
the ordinance effective date is the 30th day after its approval by a majority of the voters voting 
on the measure unless the ordinance specifies a later date. If a referendum petition is filed with 
the filing officer not later than the 90th day after adoption of an ordinance, the ordinance 
effective date is suspended. An ordinance is not subject to the referendum after it is effective. 
An ordinance referred by a referendum petition (a) does not take effect if a majority of the voters 
voting on the measure reject it and (b) takes effect, unless the ordinance specifies a later date, on 
the date the results of the election are certified if a majority of the voters voting on the measure 
approve it. 

Section 39. Content of Ordinances. Each ordinance may embrace only one subject 
and all matters properly connected with it. The Council shall plainly word each ordinance and 
avoid technical terms as far as practicable. 

Section 40. Public Improvements and Special Assessments. General ordinances 
govern the procedures for making, altering, vacating or abandoning a public improvement and 
for fixing, levying and collecting special assessments against real property for public 
improvements or services. State law governs these procedures to the extent not governed by 
general ordinances. 

Metro Charter Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

15 



CHAPTER VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 41. Transition Provisions. All legislation, orders, rules and regulations of the 
Metropolitan Service District in force when this charter takes effect remain in force after that 
time to the extent consistent with this charter and until amended or repealed by the Council. All 
rights, claims, causes of action, duties, contracts, and legal and administrative proceedings of the 
Metropolitan Service District that exist when this charter takes effect continue and are 
unimpaired by the charter. Each is in the charge of the officer or agency designated by this 
charter or by its authority to have charge of it. The unexpired terms of elected officers of the 
Metropolitan Service District continue as provided by this charter. Upon the effective date of 
this charter, the assets and liabilities of the Metropolitan Service District are the assets and 
liabilities of Metro. 

Section 42. Effective Date. This charter takes effect January 1, 1993. 

Section 43. Severability. The terms of this charter are severable. If a part of this 
charter is held invalid, that invalidity does not affect any other part of this charter unless required 
by the logical relation between the parts. 

Section 44. State Legislation. By adopting this charter the voters of Metro direct the 
Council to seek, and request the Legislative Assembly of this state to enact, any legislation 
needed to make all parts of this charter operative. 

Section 45. Further Transition Provisions. The amendments to Sections 16 ( 4)(b ), 
16 (5), 18, 20, 23, 26, 27, 28, 32 (2) and 39 adopted by the electors of Metro at the 
November 2000 election take effect on January 6, 2003. 

Former Section 17 Metro Executive Officer [Repealed effective January 6, 2003] 
Former Section 21 (2) Compensation of Elected Officers-Executive Officer [Repealed effective January 6, 2003] 

Metro Charter- Effective January 8, 2015 
Multnomah, Washington & Clackamas Counties (Metro Area) 
State of Oregon 

********* 

16 



(Effective 10/22/14) 2.19 - 6 of 30 

2.19.040  Advisory Committee Purpose and Authority 

The purpose and authority of each Advisory Committee shall be 
limited to matters specified in the action creating the 
committee and other matters specifically authorized by action of 
the Metro Council or other provisions of applicable law. 
 
(Ordinance No. 00-860A, Sec. 1.) 
 
2.19.050  Advisory Committee Bylaws 

Each Advisory Committee may adopt bylaws governing the Advisory 
Committee's functions and procedures.  Bylaws may not govern the 
membership or authority of any Advisory Committee.  Unless 
specifically authorized by the Council for any specific Advisory 
Committee, Advisory Committees shall function as committees of 
the whole and may not appoint sub-committees or otherwise create 
any advisory body that constitutes a public body pursuant to 
Oregon Public Meeting law.  However, sub-committees of limited 
duration may be created as provided in Section 2.19.070(d). 
 
(Ordinance No. 00-860A, Sec. 1.  Amended by Ordinance No. 
02-955A, Sec. l.) 
 
2.19.060  Task Forces 

Task Forces are all Advisory Committees created by Metro Council 
action that have not been specifically provided for in a 
provision of the Metro Code.  All Task Forces are of limited 
duration and the existence of any Task Force shall terminate one 
(1) year after its creation, unless specifically renewed and re-
authorized by Metro Council action.  However, in no circum-
stance, may a Task Force may be continued for more than three 
(3) years unless authorized by a duly adopted ordinance, which 
shall be codified. 
 
(Ordinance No. 00-860A, Sec. 1.) 
 
2.19.070  Status of All Advisory Committees 

(a) MPAC, JPACT, and PERC are Advisory Committees that 
have permanent and continuing existence.  They shall report 
directly to the Council and the Council President.  MPAC and 
PERC were created by the Metro Charter.  JPACT was created 
pursuant to federal law and Executive Order of the Governor of 
Oregon.  The Metro Council shall provide for these committees in 
the annual budget.  The Chief Operating Officer shall provide 



(Effective 10/22/14) 2.19 - 7 of 30 

reasonable staff support for these three (3) committees from any 
legally available and budgeted resources. 
 

(b) All other Advisory Committees authorized by this 
chapter or other provisions of Metro Code shall continue in 
active status only so long as the Metro Council specifically 
provides budgeted resources to support the committee's 
functions.  All committees shall operate on a fiscal year basis, 
July 1 to June 30.  In any fiscal year that Metro Council fails 
to authorize budgeted resources for any committee, that 
committee shall be in inactive status and shall not meet. 
 

(c) Task Forces may be created by Metro Council adopted 
resolutions, but shall be of limited duration and shall not meet 
unless the Metro Council has identified specific resources for 
support within the fiscal year budget at the time the Task Force 
is created and for any subsequent fiscal year.  No Task Force 
may be re-authorized or continued without the Metro Council 
identifying resources necessary to support its function.  The 
purpose of the Task Force shall be clearly defined in the 
authorizing resolution. 
 

(d) Subcommittees may be created by specific action of 
Advisory Committees provided that the authorization for any 
subcommittee may not extend beyond the end of any fiscal year.  
Any Advisory Committee authorizing or re-authorizing any 
subcommittee shall identify how the subcommittee will function 
within the limitation of the budget resources provided to the 
committee. 
 

(e) This chapter does not apply to the Smith and Bybee 
Lakes Management Committee, the Portland Center for Performing 
Arts Advisory Committee or any other Advisory Committee created 
or authorized by an agreement between Metro and another 
government. 
 
(Ordinance No. 00-860A, Sec. 1.  Amended by Ordinance No. 
02-955A, Sec. l; and Ordinance No. 12-1275A, Sec. 4.) 
 
2.19.080  Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC) 

(a) Purpose.  The purpose of MPAC is to advise the Metro 
Council and perform the duties assigned to it by the Metro 
Charter and to perform other duties that the Metro Council shall 
prescribe. 
 



(Effective 10/22/14) 2.19 - 8 of 30 

(b) Membership.  The members of MPAC include: 
 

(1) Voting Members: 
 

Multnomah County Commission  1 
Second Largest City in Multnomah County  1 
Other Cities in Multnomah County  1 
Special Districts in Multnomah County  1 
Citizen of Multnomah County  1 
City of Portland   2 
Clackamas County Commission  1 
Largest City in Clackamas County  1 
Second Largest City in Clackamas County  1 
Other Cities in Clackamas County  1 
Special Districts in Clackamas County  1 
Citizen of Clackamas County  1 
Washington County Commission  1 
Largest City in Washington County  1 
Second Largest City in Washington County 1 
Other Cities in Washington County  1 
Special Districts in Washington County  1 
Citizen of Washington County  1 
Tri-Met   1 
Governing body of a school district   1 

    TOTAL  21 
 

(2) Non-voting Members: 
 
 Oregon Dept. of Land Conservation and  
 Development  1 

Clark County  1 
City of Vancouver  1 
Port of Portland  1 
City in Clackamas County outside UGB 1 
City in Washington County outside UGB 1 
 TOTAL  6 

 
(c) MPAC may provide in its bylaws for the creation of a 

Technical Advisory Committee, which may make recommendations to 
MPAC. 
 

(d) A vote of both a majority of the MPAC members and a 
majority of all councilors may change the composition of MPAC at 
any time.  The Council action shall be in the form of an 
ordinance and shall amend this code section.  The MPAC bylaws 
shall govern the terms of its members. 
 



 

MPAC Worksheet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Purpose/Objective  
The purpose of this update is to discuss with MPAC members the development of the Metro 
Council’s legislative principles and priorities for the 2017 legislative session. While formal 
principles and priorities have yet to be adopted (anticipated adoption is later this month), staff 
seeks to update MPAC members on agency priorities for the coming session. 
 
 
 
 
Action Requested/Outcome  
No action requested.  
 
 
 
 
 
What has changed since MPAC last considered this issue/item? 
While Metro’s legislative principles have not substantially changed since last session, during the 
November 1st, 2016 Council work session, the Metro Council requested the addition of principles 
addressing racial equity, species conservation and disaster preparedness. 
 
 
 
 
What packet material do you plan to include?  
Metro Council 2017 Legislative Principles – DRAFT [attached] 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Title: 2017 Metro Legislative Agenda Update  

Presenter: Andy Shaw, Regional Affairs Manager, Metro 

Contact for this worksheet/presentation:  Andy Shaw, Regional Affairs Manager, Metro 

 

 



Exhibit B to Resolution 17-XXXX 
 

METRO COUNCIL 2017 LEGISLATIVE PRINCIPLES1 
 
LOCAL AUTHORITY 
1. Pre-emption:  With respect to issues related to solid waste management, land use, 

transportation planning and other matters of regional concern, Metro’s authority should not 
be pre-empted or eroded. 

2. Funding:  To ensure a prosperous economy, a clean and healthy environment, and a high 
quality of life for all of their citizens, Metro and the region’s counties, cities, and other service 
providers must have the financial resources to provide sustainable, quality public services. 
Accordingly, the Legislature should remove existing restrictions on local and regional revenue-
raising authority and avoid enacting new limitations or pre-emptions, and all state mandates 
should be accompanied by funding. 

 
EQUITY 
3. Racial Diversity, Equity and Inclusion:  Metro envisions a region and state where a person’s 

race or zip code does not predict their future prospects and where all residents can enjoy 
economic opportunity and quality of life. Metro therefore supports legislation that 
acknowledges and addresses past discrimination and current disparities and that will help to 
achieve racial equity, advance diversity and promote inclusion in programs, services, and 
policies in our region and statewide.  

 
LAND USE AND URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT: 
4. Local Authority:  The Legislature should take no actions that reduce or compromise Metro’s 

land use and urban growth management authority. 
5. Oregon’s Land Use System:  Oregon’s land use planning system provides an important 

foundation for the prosperity, sustainability and livability of our region; this system reflects 
the values of Oregonians and enjoys strong public support.2 The Legislature should exercise 
restraint and care when considering changes to Oregon’s land use system. 

6. Successful Communities:  Metro supports legislation that facilitates the achievement of the 
six desired outcomes for successful communities that have been agreed upon by the region: 
vibrant, walkable communities; economic competitiveness and prosperity; safe and reliable 
transportation choices; leadership in minimizing contributions to global warming; clean air, 
clean water and healthy ecosystems; and equitable distribution of the burdens and benefits of 
growth and change.3 

7. Local Land Use Decisions:  Management of the urban growth boundary is a complex 
undertaking that involves extensive analysis, public input, and a balancing of many factors. 
Urban growth management decisions have profound impacts not just on land at the 
boundary, but on communities within the boundary and on farms and other rural lands 
outside the boundary. For these reasons, the Legislature should establish the process and 
policy framework for local land use decisions and should affirm the authority of local 
governments, including Metro, to make specific decisions on local land use matters. 

8. Efficiency:  Land within the urban growth boundary should be used efficiently before the 
boundary is expanded.4 

9. Need:  The UGB should not be expanded in the absence of demonstrated need.5 



Exhibit B to Resolution 17-XXXX 
 

10. Affordable Housing: Metro supports efforts to ensure that housing choices are available to 
people of all incomes in every community in our region, and to reduce the number of 
households that must spend more than 50 percent of their income on housing plus 
transportation.6   

11. Transportation:  Land use and transportation planning should be coordinated so land uses do 
not undermine the efficiency and reliability of the transportation system and transportation 
investments do not lead to unintended or inefficient land uses.7 

12. Annexation:  Cities are the preferred governing structure for providing public services to 
urban areas, and the inability to annex land brought into the urban growth boundary to 
accommodate urbanization prevents efficient development of livable communities. For these 
reasons, Metro supports reforms that will facilitate, or reduce barriers to, orderly annexation 
and incorporation.  

13. Rules/Statutes:  Administrative rules should not be adopted into statute. 
14. Non-Regulatory Tools:  State efforts at regulatory streamlining should include funding to 

support development of non-regulatory tools for achieving desired land use outcomes.8 
15. Fiscal Responsibility:  Funding to support urban development should be generated at least in 

part by fees on those who directly benefit from that development.   
 
SOLID WASTE: 
16. Product Stewardship:  Metro supports efforts to minimize the health, safety, environmental, 

economic and social risks throughout all lifecycle stages of a product and its packaging, and 
believes that the producer of the product has the greatest ability, and therefore the greatest 
responsibility, to minimize those adverse impacts. 

 
TRANSPORTATION: 
17. Transportation Governance:  The Legislature should take no actions that reduce or 

compromise Metro’s or JPACT’s authority in the areas of transportation policy and funding. 
18.  Transportation Funding:  Providing adequate funding for all transportation modes that move 

passengers and freight supports economic prosperity, community livability, public health and 
environmental quality. For these reasons, Metro supports an increase in overall 
transportation funding, investments in a balanced multimodal transportation system that 
addresses the needs of all users, and flexibility in the system to provide for local solutions to 
transportation problems.   

 
PARKS AND NATURAL AREAS: 
19.  Parks and Natural Areas:  Our region has invested heavily in protecting water quality and 

wildlife habitat and providing residents with access to nature and outdoor activity. Parks and 
natural areas are regional assets that support public health, environmental quality, strong 
property values and economic prosperity. For these reasons, Metro supports measures to 
increase local and regional authority to raise revenues to support parks and natural areas and 
to increase the level of state funding distributed to local governments for acquisition, capital 
improvements, and park operations. 

 
 
 



Exhibit B to Resolution 17-XXXX 
 

SUSTAINABILITY: 
20. Climate Change:  Metro supports efforts to combat and adapt to climate change and to meet 

the state’s goals for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
21. Species Conservation:  Metro supports efforts to protect and restore wildlife habitat, to 

recover threatened and endangered species, and to create a better future for wildlife, both in 
Oregon and globally. 

22. Conservation Education:  Metro supports efforts to provide stable and reliable funding to 
conservation education.  
 

ECONOMIC PROSPERITY: 
23.  Infrastructure Finance:  Metro supports measures, including funding or revenue measures, 

which facilitate state, regional or local investments in the public structures needed to 
accommodate population and economic growth in a way that helps the region achieve its six 
desired outcomes for successful communities.  

24. Metro Venues:  Because the Oregon Convention Center, Expo Center, Portland’5 Centers for 
the Arts and Oregon Zoo are assets that contribute millions of dollars to the state and regional 
economies, Metro supports legislative measures that facilitate the success of these venues in 
attracting visitors and enhancing the quality of their experiences. 

 
AGENCY OPERATIONS: 
25. Firearms and Public Facilities:  Metro supports legislation that increases Metro’s authority to 

regulate the carrying of firearms on Metro properties and public venues, and opposes 
legislation that limits or reduces that authority. 

26. Disaster Preparedness:  Metro supports legislative efforts to improve community disaster 
preparedness and resilience, with the goal of enabling the Portland region to provide for the 
immediate needs of its residents after a catastrophic event and facilitating the region’s short- 
and long-term recovery. 

 

 
                                                 

1 Unless otherwise noted, endnotes refer to applicable policy statements in Metro’s Regional Framework 
Plan (RFP). 

2 See http://oregonvaluesproject.org/findings/top-findings/ (specifically item 5, Natural Resource Protections 

for Future Generations) 
3 RFP Chapter 1 (Land Use).   
4 RFP Policy 1.1 (Compact Urban Form). 
5 RFP Policy 1.9 (Urban Growth Boundary). 
6 RFP Policy 1.3 (Housing Choices and Opportunities). 
7 RFP Policy 1.3.13 (Housing Choices and Opportunities); Transportation Goal 1 (Foster Vibrant 

Communities and Efficient Urban Form). 
8 RFP Policy 1.1 (Compact Urban Form); Policy 1.2 (Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main 

Streets). 

http://oregonvaluesproject.org/findings/top-findings/

	011117 MPAC Agenda
	2017 MPAC Work Program
	Item No. 5.1: Consent Agenda
	MTAC Nomination
	110916 MPAC Meeting Minutes

	Item No. 6.1: MPAC's Legal Roles and Responsibilities
	MPAC Bylaws
	Metro Charter
	Metro Code Section on MPAC

	Item No. 6.3: 2017 Metro Legislative Agenda Update
	MPAC Worksheet
	Draft 2017 Metro Legislative Principles




